
For further information regarding this agenda, or for special accommodations to participate in the 
public meeting, please contact planning@haileycityhall.org or (208) 788-9815. 

AGENDA 
HAILEY PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

Tuesday, October 9, 2012 
Hailey City Hall 

6:30 p.m. 
 
Call to Order 
 
Public Comment for items not on the agenda 
 
Consent Agenda 
 
CA 1 Motion to approve minutes of September 10, 2012 P&Z Meeting 
 
CA 2  Motion to approve the design review exemption request from Blaine County School 

District (BCSD) for installation of eight new wall-mounted LED Fixtures proposed to 
be mounted on the southwest exterior of the Community Campus Building, located at 
Wood River High School Campus PUD Subdivision, Lot 1, Blk 3 (1250 Fox Acres 
Road). 

 
CA 3  Motion to approve the design review exemption request from Kurt & Lisa Patterson for 

installation of awnings on The Wildflower store, located at 102 N Main St. (Hailey 
Townsite, Lots 5’of 18, 19.97’ Lot 19, Blk 40). 

 
New Business  
 
NB 1 Public Hearing and Consideration of a Design Review request by Blaine County for an 

alteration to the rear entryway area and structure of Blaine County Courthouse, 
located at Hailey, Blk 27, Lots 13-22 (206 S. 1st Ave.), within the Business and 
Townsite Overlay Zoning Districts. 

 
NB 2 Public Hearing and Consideration of an application by Andrea Minnick for a Conditional 

Use Permit for a physical fitness facility, to be located at Hailey Business Park, Blk 1, 
Lots 10 & AM 11A (810 S. Main, situated in designated space at the middle of Unit 
C) within the Technological Industry Zoning District. 

 
NB 3 Public Hearing and Consideration of a city initiated amendment to Section 8.2.2 of the 

Zoning Ordinance which addresses temporary signs.  The proposed amendment 
revises the definition of a temporary sign and adds a new subsection 8.2.11(H) to 
provide temporary sign standards.  

 
Old Business 
 
 None at this Time   
 
Commission Reports and Discussion 

mailto:planning@haileycityhall.org


For further information regarding this agenda, or for special accommodations to participate in the 
public meeting, please contact planning@haileycityhall.org or (208) 788-9815. 

 
Staff Reports and Discussion  
SR 1 Discussion of current building activity 
 
SR 2 Discussion regarding recommendations for approval or denial or for exemption of certain 

applications from Design Review, subject to final decision by the Commission on its 
consent agenda as required by Zoning Ordinance Section 6A.2. 

 
SR 3 Discussion of the next Planning and Zoning meeting: November 12, 2012  

 
 
Adjourn 

mailto:planning@haileycityhall.org


HAILEY PLANNING & ZONING MINUTES 
September 10, 2012 
 

MINUTES OF THE 
HAILEY PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

Monday, September 10, 2012 
Hailey City Hall 

6:30 p.m. 
 
Present:  Jay Cone, Geoff Moore, Janet Fugate, Owen Scanlon 
Absent:  Michael Pogue 
Staff:  Micah Austin, Bart Bingham, Ned Williamson 
 
Call to Order 
6:32:04 PM  Chair Moore called the meeting to order. 
 
Public Comment for items not on the agenda 
6:32:36 PM  None. 
 
Consent Agenda 

CA 1 Motion to approve minutes of August 27, 2012 P&Z Meeting 
CA 2 Motion to approve the Design Review Exemption request from Blaine County Senior Center to 

exempt from design review three exterior features proposed to be modified at the Senior Center 
Facility located at Hailey Townsite, Lots 11 & 12, in Blk 126 (721 S. 3rd Ave). 
6:32:53 PM  Jay Cone pulled CA 2.  Janet Fugate moved to approve the Consent Agenda 
minus CA 2.  Owen Scanlon seconded, and the motion passed unanimously.   
6:33:30 PM  Jay Cone asked for clarification on the Senior Center photos provided.  He believed 
work may have already been started as one photo showed a window already installed.  Bart 
Bingham explained the new and existing windows in the photos.  Architect Jolyon Sawrey, 
representing the Senior Center, further explained that he created some of the images using 
Photoshop so that the Commission could see clearly how the finished project would look.  Mr. 
Sawrey noted that a previous application was already approved for the windows as shown, and 
that the Senior Center had finally received grant funds to move forward now.   
6:37:15 PM  Owen Scanlon moved to approve CA 2.  Janet Fugate seconded, and the 
motion carried unanimously.   
 
New Business 

NB 1 Motion to approve an application by Verizon Wireless LLC, dba Verizon Wireless, for 
modification of a Wireless Permit for an existing monopole tower, located at 
Warehouse West Condominiums in Friedman Park Subdivision (1141 Airport Way), 
within the Light Industrial (LI) zoning district. The modification is to remove two (2) 
existing 4 foot panel antennas from the existing onsite 101’ tower and add two (2) 
new 6-foot panel antennas to be added approximately at the same 95’ level on the 
tower as the antennas proposed to be removed. 
6:37:42 PM  Bart Bingham provided an overview and photographs.  At Mr. Bingham’s 
suggestion, no representatives from Verizon were present.   
6:41:42 PM  Chair Moore opened the meeting to public comment.  None was offered. 

ftr://?location=&quot;PZ&quot;?date=&quot;10-Sep-2012&quot;?position=&quot;18:32:04&quot;?Data=&quot;2dbc66e8&quot;
ftr://?location=&quot;PZ&quot;?date=&quot;10-Sep-2012&quot;?position=&quot;18:32:36&quot;?Data=&quot;0121dccd&quot;
ftr://?location=&quot;PZ&quot;?date=&quot;10-Sep-2012&quot;?position=&quot;18:32:53&quot;?Data=&quot;e0a6cfe2&quot;
ftr://?location=&quot;PZ&quot;?date=&quot;10-Sep-2012&quot;?position=&quot;18:33:30&quot;?Data=&quot;cb88e82f&quot;
ftr://?location=&quot;PZ&quot;?date=&quot;10-Sep-2012&quot;?position=&quot;18:37:15&quot;?Data=&quot;b875196c&quot;
ftr://?location=&quot;PZ&quot;?date=&quot;10-Sep-2012&quot;?position=&quot;18:37:42&quot;?Data=&quot;756fb066&quot;
ftr://?location=&quot;PZ&quot;?date=&quot;10-Sep-2012&quot;?position=&quot;18:41:42&quot;?Data=&quot;0ce929ae&quot;


HAILEY PLANNING & ZONING MINUTES 
September 10, 2012 
 

6:41:54 PM  Janet Fugate moved to approve NB 1.  Jay Cone seconded.  Discussion included 
whether this change might bring 4G to the valley.  In a call for the question, the motion 
carried unanimously.   
 
Old Business 

OB 1 Approve the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law for the Design Review application from 
Michael Kraynick to relocate/develop a residence, garage, and shop on Hailey Townsite Lots 
9A, 12A of Block 61. 
6:43:03 PM  Chair Moore inquired whether all Commissioners had seen the samples provided by 
the applicant.  Bart Bingham retrieved the samples for additional viewing and discussion.  Jay 
Cone inquired whether there was an architect or an engineer on this project.  Mr. Bingham 
assured an architect had been to the site to inspect footings.  Discussion included the recent stop-
work order issued, and the applicants’ responsive provision of samples and information.  Micah 
Austin noted that the applicant now complied with the conditions and standards as required by 
the Commission.  6:49:26 PM Ned Williamson advised that approval of the findings of fact is 
therefore now appropriate, adding that any building issues are separate from the findings.  Jay 
Cone asked for confirmation that the City had been provided with all information and samples 
necessary for approval.  Mr. Austin assured the City was satisfied.   
6:50:40 PM  Owen Scanlon moved to approve the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law 
for the Kraynick application.  Jay Cone seconded, and the motion carried unopposed.   
 
Commission Reports and Discussion 
Staff Reports and Discussion 

SR 1 Discussion of sign ordinance revision addressing Temporary Signs 
SR 2 Discussion of current building activity 
SR 3 Discussion of the next Planning and Zoning meeting: September 

6:51:18 PM  Bart Bingham asked if tonight’s agenda could be amended to allow consideration of 
a small construction project on the back porch of the courthouse as requested by Thomas Phillips 
of McKinstry Construction.  Consensus was reached that this matter should come back to the 
Commission as a design review exemption request at the next regular meeting since no 
application materials had yet been submitted.  Micah Austin asked for clarification regarding the 
scope and scale of this project.  Ned Williamson and Mr. Bingham explained.  6:55:37 PM  
6:55:55 PM  Micah Austin provided an overview on this sign ordinance draft reminding that this 
was a coordinated group effort with business owners, and that their response was favorable.  
Chair Moore inquired if this matter would come back to P&Z before moving on to the City 
Council.  Mr. Austin assured it would and that a public hearing would be required.  Commission 
consensus was favorable with strong support for the cooperative approach in finding a good 
solution.   
7:02:55 PM  Mr. Austin noted that building activity is currently up and optimistic.   
7:04:15 PM  Janet Fugate advised she will be out of town on October 8, and asked if that is 
actually a city holiday in honor of Columbus Day.  Consensus was reached to meet on Tuesday, 
October 9, 2012.  Ms. Fugate does not expect to be back in town on that date.   
 
Adjourn 
7:07:23 PM  Jay Cone moved to adjourn.  Owen Scanlon seconded, and the motion carried 
unanimously.   

ftr://?location=&quot;PZ&quot;?date=&quot;10-Sep-2012&quot;?position=&quot;18:41:54&quot;?Data=&quot;e2dea5d7&quot;
ftr://?location=&quot;PZ&quot;?date=&quot;10-Sep-2012&quot;?position=&quot;18:43:03&quot;?Data=&quot;2b31dce0&quot;
ftr://?location=&quot;PZ&quot;?date=&quot;10-Sep-2012&quot;?position=&quot;18:49:26&quot;?Data=&quot;46051d10&quot;
ftr://?location=&quot;PZ&quot;?date=&quot;10-Sep-2012&quot;?position=&quot;18:50:40&quot;?Data=&quot;d287c674&quot;
ftr://?location=&quot;PZ&quot;?date=&quot;10-Sep-2012&quot;?position=&quot;18:51:18&quot;?Data=&quot;a83c1416&quot;
ftr://?location=&quot;PZ&quot;?date=&quot;10-Sep-2012&quot;?position=&quot;18:55:37&quot;?Data=&quot;b47c0531&quot;
ftr://?location=&quot;PZ&quot;?date=&quot;10-Sep-2012&quot;?position=&quot;18:55:55&quot;?Data=&quot;c82c2ea7&quot;
ftr://?location=&quot;PZ&quot;?date=&quot;10-Sep-2012&quot;?position=&quot;19:02:55&quot;?Data=&quot;1c3bd35f&quot;
ftr://?location=&quot;PZ&quot;?date=&quot;10-Sep-2012&quot;?position=&quot;19:04:15&quot;?Data=&quot;8ab4e10e&quot;
ftr://?location=&quot;PZ&quot;?date=&quot;10-Sep-2012&quot;?position=&quot;19:07:23&quot;?Data=&quot;c27c777f&quot;


FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION 
 
On October 9, 2012, the Hailey Planning and Zoning Commission considered the recommendation by 
the Administrator to exempt from design review an alteration to the exterior of an existing building 
(Community Campus Building), located at Wood River High School Campus PUD Subdivision, Lot 1, 
Blk 3 (1250 Fox Acres Road) within the General Residential (GR) zoning district.  The Commission, 
having been presented with all information regarding the proposal, hereby makes the following Findings 
of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Decision. 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
 
Standards of Evaluation 
Articles IV and VI(A) of the Hailey Zoning Ordinance establish the criteria for applications for Zoning 
and Design Review.  For each applicable standard (in bold print), the Commission makes the following 
Findings of Fact: 
 
6A.1(A). No person shall build, develop, or substantially remodel or alter the exterior of the 
following Buildings without receiving design review approval pursuant to this Article: 

1. A building for a non-residential use within any zoning district. 
2. A building for a Public or Semi-Public Use within any zoning district. 
3. A Multi-Family Dwelling of three or more units within any zoning district. 
4. A Single Family Dwelling, Duplex or Accessory Structure within the 

Townsite Overlay (TO) District.   
5. A Historic Structure. 

The Community Campus Building is used for public uses.  Therefore, design review approval is 
required.  
 
6A.2(A)(3). The Administrator has the authority to recommend exemption of certain projects 
from the design review requirements, upon finding; the project is minor, will not conflict with the 
design review standards of this Chapter and will not adversely impact any adjacent properties. 
Examples include, but are not limited to minor deck additions, changes to siding materials, 
changes to an existing window or door, an addition of a window or door, and minor landscape 
changes. Such recommendation for exemption shall be drafted in the form of Findings of Fact and 
Conclusions of Law, subject to final decision by the Commission on its consent agenda prior to 
issuance of a building permit.  Should the Commission deny the Administrator’s recommendation 
or should the Administrator determine that the proposal does not meet all of the above evaluation 
criteria, the project shall be subject to the provisions of this chapter prior to issuance of a building 
permit. 

The Administrator reviewed a request submitted by Blaine County School district (BCSD), represented 
by Paul Stoops, PE,  of Paul Stoops Associates, for alteration to the exterior of an existing building 
(Community Campus Building) located at Wood River High School Campus PUD Subdivision, Lot 1, 
Blk 3 (1250 Fox Acres Road) within the General Residential (GR) zoning district.  The proposal is to 
add eight (8) wall-mounted Lithonia cat no. OLW23LED fixtures mounted onto the southwest portion of 
the building to enhance ingress and egress to the building as shown on exhibits 1-3.  The Administrator 
finds the proposed alterations constitute a minor project and will not adversely impact any adjacent 
properties because the proposed Lithonia Lights comply with the Outdoor Lighting requirements of 
Article VIIV of the Zoning Ordinance which require “illuminance levels for all sidewalks” not to  
exceed the most current Illuminating Engineering Society of North America (IESNA)” manual.  Those 
recommendations state walkway poles should be 15 to 20 feet tall and bulbs should be 70 watt, 
depending on the type of fixture and local conditions.  A recent report states “cutoff wall-paks are very 



 WRHS Campus PUD Sub, Lot 1, Blk 3 (Community Campus Outdoor Lighting).- Design Review Exemption 
Planning & Zoning Commission – October 9, 2012 

Findings of Fact – Page 2 of 2 
 
 

effective in providing light for walkways adjacent to buildings while minimizing "uplight."  BCSD’s 
submittal states the proposed lights have been tested in accordance with the IESNA LM-79 and LM-80 
standards (see Features & Specifications page), and the proposed lights are also wall packs which is 
discussed in the report. 



 WRHS Campus PUD Sub, Lot 1, Blk 3 (Community Campus Outdoor Lighting).- Design Review Exemption 
Planning & Zoning Commission – October 9, 2012 

Findings of Fact – Page 3 of 2 
 
 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION 
 
Based upon the above Findings of Fact, the Commission makes the following Conclusions of Law and 
Decision: 
 

1. The addition of eight (8) new wall mounted LED fixtures, as detailed and shown as alterations to 
the exterior of an existing building (Community Campus Building), located at Wood River High 
School Campus PUD Subdivision, Lot 1, Blk 3 (1250 Fox Acres Road) within the General 
Residential (GR) zoning district in exhibits 1 through 3, constitutes a minor project, and will not 
conflict with the design review standards of this Chapter and will not adversely impact any 
adjacent properties. 

 
2. The eight (8) wall-mounted Lithonia cat no. OLW23LED fixtures proposed to be mounted onto 

the southwest portion of the Community Campus Building are in compliance with the IESNA 
LM-79 and LM-80 standards and are approved for installation. 

 
3. This approval exempts this project from the design review requirements and standards of Article 

VI(A).   
 
 
Signed this _____ day of ____________, 2012. 
 
 
__________________________ 
Geoffrey Moore, Chair 
Hailey Planning and Zoning Commission 
 
Attest: 
 
_______________________________ 
Bart Bingham, Planning and Zoning Administrator 
 









DECORATIVE INDOOR & OUTDOOR            OLW

Catalog  
Number

Notes

TypeFEATURES & SPECIFICATIONS
INTENDED USE
Provides maintenance-free general illumination for outdoor use in residential and commercial applications 
such as retail, education, multi-unit housing and storage. Ideal for lighting building facades, parking areas, 
walkways, garages, loading areas and any other outdoor space requiring reliable safety and security.

CONSTRUCTION
Sturdy weather-resistant aluminum housing with a bronze finish.  

High performance LEDs are powered by an MVOLT driver that provides 2,300/3,100 delivered lumens at 5000K. 
50,000 hour average LED life means no lamp replacement. Fixture is maintenance-free.

Operating temperature -30ºC to 40ºC.

Adjustable Dusk-to-Dawn, photocell standard automatically turns light on at dusk and off at dawn for 
convenience and energy savings.

Photocell can be disabled by rotating the photocell cover.

OPTICS
Precision-molded acrylic lenses provide optimal luminaire spacing with Type 3 distribution.

Nighttime Friendly™ full cutoff above 90° angle, standard.

INSTALLATION
Wall or arm mount (mounting arm sold separately).

All mounting hardware included. 

LISTINGS
UL Certified to US safety standards. C-UL Certified to Canadian safety standards. Wet location listed.
Tested in accordance with IESNA LM-79 and LM-80 standards. DLC qualified product.
WARRANTY
Five-year limited warranty.
Full warranty terms located at  www.AcuityBrands.com/CustomerResources/Terms_and_Conditions.aspx.

NOTE: Specifications are subject to change without notice.

OLW 23

Series Lumens / Color Temperature (CCT) Voltage Features Finish

OLW LED Wall Light

   

23

31

2300 delivered lumens / 
5000K1

3100 delivered lumens /
5000K1

 

(blank) MVOLT (120V-277V) (blank) Photocell included (blank) DDB Dark Bronze

ORDERING INFORMATION For shortest lead times, configure products using bolded options. Example: OLW 23

Accessories: Order as separate catalog number.

OMA M6 14” Aluminum Mounting Arm

Outdoor General Purpose

OLW 
LED  WALL PACK

Specifications
All dimensions are inches (centimeters)

14-7/8
(37.8)

2-5/8
(6.7)

2-3/16
(5.6)

9-7/8
(25.1)

4-3/8
(11.1)

9-7/8
(25.1)

Notes
1 Correlated Color Temperature (CCT) shown is nominal per ANSI C78,377-2008. 

PD
Polygon



 OLW

DECORATIVE INDOOR & OUTDOOR:  One Lithonia Way  Conyers, GA 30012  Phone:  800.748.5070  Fax: 770.860.3903  www.lithonia.com © 2011-2012 Acuity Brands Lighting, Inc.  All rights reserved.   01/26/12

OLW LED Wall Light

Full photometric data report available within 2 weeks from request. Consult factory.
Tested in accordance with IESNA LM-79 and LM-80 standards.

PHOTOMETRICS



FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION 
 
On October 9, 2012, the Hailey Planning and Zoning Commission considered the recommendation by 
the Administrator to exempt the addition of an awning from design review, which constitutes an 
alteration to the exterior of an existing building, on LOTS S 5'OF 18, 19.97' LOT 19 of the Hailey 
Townsite, located within the Business (B) zoning district (102 N. Main Street),.  The Commission, 
having been presented with all information regarding the proposal, hereby makes the following Findings 
of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Decision. 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
 
Standards of Evaluation 
Articles IV and VI(A) of the Hailey Zoning Ordinance establish the criteria for applications for Zoning 
and Design Review.  For each applicable standard (in bold print), the Commission makes the following 
Findings of Fact: 
 
6A.1(A). No person shall build, develop, or substantially remodel or alter the exterior of the 
following Buildings without receiving design review approval pursuant to this Article: 

1. A building for a non-residential use within any zoning district. 
2. A building for a Public or Semi-Public Use within any zoning district. 
3. A Multi-Family Dwelling of three or more units within any zoning district. 
4. A Single Family Dwelling, Duplex or Accessory Structure within the 

Townsite Overlay (TO) District.   
5. A Historic Structure. 

 
FINDING: 

• The proposed use for this building will be for commercial/retail and will be open to the public 
during regular business hours, as established by the proprietor.  Design Review is therefore 
required.   

 
6A.2(A)(3). The Administrator has the authority to recommend exemption of certain projects 
from the design review requirements, upon finding; the project is minor, will not conflict with the 
design review standards of this Chapter and will not adversely impact any adjacent properties. 
Examples include, but are not limited to minor deck additions, changes to siding materials, 
changes to an existing window or door, an addition of a window or door, and minor landscape 
changes. Such recommendation for exemption shall be drafted in the form of Findings of Fact and 
Conclusions of Law, subject to final decision by the Commission on its consent agenda prior to 
issuance of a building permit.  Should the Commission deny the Administrator’s recommendation 
or should the Administrator determine that the proposal does not meet all of the above evaluation 
criteria, the project shall be subject to the provisions of this chapter prior to issuance of a building 
permit. 
 
FINDING: 

• The Administrator reviewed a request submitted by the Lisa Patterson, proprietor of The 
Wildflower, for alteration of the exterior of an existing building with the addition of an awning.  
This building is located on LOTS S 5'OF 18, 19.97' LOT 19 of the Hailey Townsite (102 N 
Main) within the Business zoning district.  The proposal is add an awning to the west facing 
windows of the storefront.  The Administrator finds the proposed alteration constitutes a minor 
project, will not conflict with the design review standards of this Article 6A and will not 
adversely impact any adjacent properties.  The alteration only proposed the addition of an 
awning and the chosen colors are found to be compatible with the buildings in the surrounding 



 The Wildflower (Lisa Patterson) LOTS S 5'OF 18, 19.97' LOT 19 of the Hailey Townsite (awnings addition). 
Design Review Exemption 

Planning & Zoning Commission – October 9, 2012 
Findings of Fact – Page 2 of 2 

 
 

area. The Administrator recommends exemption of awnings addition from the design review 
requirements. 

 
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION 

 
Based upon the above Findings of Fact, the Commission makes the following Conclusions of Law and 
Decision: 
 

1. The proposed awning color and design change of the existing building located at on LOTS S 
5'OF 18, 19.97' LOT 19 of the Hailey Townsite (102 N Main) within the Business zoning district 
constitutes a minor project, will not conflict with the design review standards of Article 6A and 
will not adversely impact any adjacent properties. 

 
2. The proposed awning color change is approved and is documented in the project file. 
 
3. This approval exempts this project from the design review requirements and standards of Article 

VIA.   
 
 
Signed this _____ day of ____________, 2012. 
 
 
__________________________ 
Geoffrey Moore, Chair 
Hailey Planning and Zoning Commission 
 
Attest: 
 
_______________________________ 
Bart Bingham, Planning and Zoning Administrator 
 













FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION 
 
On October 9, 2012 the Hailey Planning and Zoning Commission considered the recommendation by 
the Administrator to exempt from design review an alteration to the exterior of an existing building 
(Blaine County Courthouse, hereinafter BCC), located at Hailey Townsite, Blk 27, Lots 13-22 (206 S. 
1st Ave.), within the Business and Townsite Overlay zoning districts.  The Commission, having been 
presented with all information regarding the proposal, hereby makes the following Findings of Fact, 
Conclusions of Law and Decision. 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
 

Application 
Blaine County, represented by Thomas Phillips of McKinstry Essention Inc., submitted a Design 
Review application for an alteration to the rear entryway area and structure of BCC based on the 
Administrator’s authority (1). to recommend approval or denial where there is no substantial impact on 
adjacent properties or the community at large.  BCC is located at Hailey Townsite, Blk 27, Lots 13-22 
(206 S. 1st Ave.).  The applicant’s proposals are to remove existing exterior moldings and material from 
the BBC rear entryway area and structure (totaling 437 square feet) to conduct internal seismic and 
structural upgrades.  Upon completion of the upgrades, all present exterior moldings and materials will 
either be re-installed or be replaced if either destroyed or not suitable for re-installation so they match 
submitted drawings of existing materials.  The alteration area is 437 square feet in size and includes the 
overall area of the upper and lower portions of the entryway area and BCC building space.  
 
Standards of Evaluation 
Articles IV and VIA of the Hailey Zoning Ordinance establish the criteria for applications for Zoning 
and Design Review.  For each applicable standard (in bold print), the Commission makes the following 
Findings of Fact: 
 
6A.2(A)(1).  The Administrator has the authority to recommend for approval or denial certain 
applications for Design Review that the Administrator determines to have no substantial impact 
on adjacent properties or on the community at large, subject to final approval or denial by the 
Commission on its consent agenda. Such recommendation for approval or denial shall specify the 
ordinance and standards used in evaluating the application; the reasons for the approval or 
denial; and recommended conditions, if any.  Any Commissioner may cause any application on 
the consent agenda to be moved to the regular agenda in order to have a full public hearing of 
potential impacts of the application.  Applications placed on the consent agenda may include, but 
are not limited to: additions under five-hundred (500) square feet or not prominently visible from 
a public street, façade changes and alterations to parking or other site elements.  Such 
applications may instead by heard by the Hearing Examiner. 
The applicant is proposing to remove and re-install exterior moldings and materials to the rear entryway 
and building space of BCC which is 437 square feet in space.  The entryway is adjacent to an alley, and 
is arguably not prominently visible from 2nd Ave. East, located half a block away.  Additionally, the 
alterations pertain to the entryway façade but are not proposed to change the facade but to restore it to its 
present or original historical condition (re-roof tin to return roof to a similar red tin color as was 
originally used on the building). 
 
The Administrator finds the proposed alteration constitutes a minor project, will not conflict with the 
design review standards of this Chapter and will not adversely impact any adjacent properties because 
the alteration is to a structure area less than 500 square feet and either reinstalls or replaces damaged or 
destroyed exterior materials and molding matching their present or original historical condition.  The 
proposed alteration will not be prominently visible from the public street. 
 



 Hailey Townsite (County Courthouse Rear Entryway Alteration), Blk 27, Lots 13-22 (206 S. 1st Ave.) 
Planning & Zoning Commission – October 9, 2012 

Design Review Exemption - Findings of Fact – Page 2 of 7 
 
 

 
8.2 Signs. 
The applicant is hereby advised that a sign permit is required for any signage exceeding four square feet 
in sign area.  Approval of signage areas or signage plan in Design Review does not constitute approval 
of a sign permit. 
 
9 Parking and Loading Spaces 
 
9.4 On-Site Parking Space Requirements. 
9.4.1.  Where the calculation of parking spaces results in a fraction, the required parking shall be 
rounded down to the nearest whole number. 9.4.2.A.  All commercial, professional, service, 
recreation and entertainment uses shall provide improved parking in the amount of one parking 
space for every 1,000 square feet of gross building area. 
Alteration area comprises 437 square feet so parking is not an issue. 
 
8B.4. Outdoor Lighting Standards. 
8B.4.1 General Standards 

a. All exterior lighting shall be designed, located and lamped in order to prevent: 
1. Overlighting; 
2. Energy waste; 
3. Glare;  
4. Light Trespass;  
5. Skyglow.  

b. All non-essential exterior commercial and residential lighting is encouraged to be 
turned off after business hours and/or when not in use.  Lights on a timer are 
encouraged.  Sensor activated lights are encouraged to replace existing lighting that is 
desired for security purposes. 

c. Canopy lights, such as service station lighting shall be fully recessed or fully shielded so 
as to ensure that no light source is visible from or causes glare on public rights of way 
or adjacent properties.  

d. Area lights. All area lights are encouraged to be eighty-five (85) degree full cut-off type 
luminaires. 

e. Idaho Power shall not install any luminaires after the effective date of this Article that 
lights the public right of way without first receiving approval for any such application 
by the Lighting Administrator. 

No new lighting is proposed for entryway exterior.  It is a condition of approval that all existing and new 
lighting comply with Article 8B of the Hailey Zoning Ordinance. 
 
4.7.5  Bulk requirements within the Business district 
 
4.13.6 Bulk Requirements 
   

c. Maximum Building Height – 
Business district:  The maximum building height in the Business district shall be 35 feet, 
except a building containing at least one residential dwelling unit shall have a maximum 
height of 40 feet.  

Entryway area will remain at its present height below 35 feet.  
 

e. Minimum Setbacks in the B District - None, except as pertains to townhouses. : 



 Hailey Townsite (County Courthouse Rear Entryway Alteration), Blk 27, Lots 13-22 (206 S. 1st Ave.) 
Planning & Zoning Commission – October 9, 2012 

Design Review Exemption - Findings of Fact – Page 3 of 7 
 
 

Entryway area will remain setback as it is presently. 
 

g. Maximum lot coverage: 
 Business district:  no maximum. 

There is no limit on lot coverage in Business district.  
 
Height of Building is defined as: The greatest vertical distance measured from the lowest point of 
record grade within any portion of the building footprint to the highest point of the roof surface 
thereof, exclusive of cupolas, chimneys up to ten (10) feet above the highest point of the roof 
surface, steeples, and spires. 
The applicant is hereby advised height of building is from record (natural) grade, not from finished 
grade or finished floor. 
 
6A.7 Improvements Required. 

A. Streets.   
1. Sidewalks and drainage improvements are required in all zoning districts, 

except as otherwise provided herein.   
a. The requirement for Sidewalk and drainage improvements may be 

waived if the proposed project construction is less than five hundred (500) square feet.   
Proposed project alteration area is 437 square feet, so sidewalk and drainage improvements are waived.  
 

6A.8 Design Standards 
A. Non-Residential, Multifamily or Mixed Use Building.  The following design 

standards apply to any non-residential, multifamily or mixed use building located within the City 
of Hailey. 

1. Site Planning 
a. The location, orientation and surface of buildings shall maximize, to 

the greatest extent possible sun exposure in exterior spaces to create spaces around buildings that 
are usable by the residents and allow for safe access to buildings. 
Alterations will maintain existing sun exposure of BCC exterior spaces. 
 

b. Site circulation shall be designed so pedestrians have safe access to 
and through the site and to building. 
Site circulation will remain as it exists at BCC.   
 

c. Building services including loading areas, trash storage/pickup areas 
and utility boxes shall be located at the rear of a building; the side of the building adjacent to an 
internal lot line may be considered as an alternate location.  These areas shall be designed in a 
manner to minimize conflict among uses and shall not interfere with other uses, such as snow 
storage.  These areas shall be screened with landscaping, enclosures, fencing or by the principal 
building.  
Building service area will remain as it exists at BCC, with access to the alley. 
 

d. Where alleys exist, or are planned, they shall be utilized for building 
services. 
Building service area will remain as it exists at BCC; building services being accessed from the alley. 
 
 



 Hailey Townsite (County Courthouse Rear Entryway Alteration), Blk 27, Lots 13-22 (206 S. 1st Ave.) 
Planning & Zoning Commission – October 9, 2012 

Design Review Exemption - Findings of Fact – Page 4 of 7 
 
 

e. Access to on-site parking shall be from the alley or, if the site is not 
serviced by an alley, from a single approach to the street to confine vehicular/pedestrian conflict to 
limited locations, allow more buffering of the parking area and preserve the street frontage for 
pedestrian traffic. 
Onsite parking will remain unchanged. 
 

2. Building Design 
a. The proportion, size, shape and rooflines of new buildings shall be 

compatible with surrounding buildings. 
Entryway and building roof will be re-constructed to BCC existing roof pitch. 
 

b. At ground level, building design shall emphasize human scale, be 
pedestrian oriented and encourage human activity and interaction.   
Entryway is pedestrian and service oriented.  
 

c. Any addition onto or renovation of an existing building shall be 
designed to create a cohesive whole. 
Alterations are designed to return entryway and building space to original BCC appearance.   
 

d. All exterior walls of a building shall incorporate the use of varying 
materials, textures and colors. 
Entryway roofing is proposed to be red metal to match roofing of other portions of BCC.  Proposed 
roofing will replace non-original white roofing that has not matched other portions of the BCC roof.   
 

e. Exterior buildings colors and materials shall be integrated 
appropriately into the architecture of the building and be harmonious within the project and with 
surrounding buildings. 
Alterations are designed to return entryway and BCC building space to original courthouse appearance.  
Molding and materials will either be re-installed or be replaced if destroyed or not re-installable.  
 

f. Gabled coverings, appropriate roof pitch, or snow clips and/or gutters 
and downspouts shall be provided over all walkways and entries to prevent snow from falling 
directly onto adjacent sidewalks.   
Rain gutters will be installed on  
A rain gutter is shown on submittals above entryway and will either be retained, or will be replaced with 
another rain gutter if not possible to be replaced. 
 

B. Non-Residential Building Located within B, LB, or TN.  In addition to the standards 
applicable to any non-residential, multifamily or mixed use building located within the City of 
Hailey described in Section 6A.8.A, the following design standards also apply to any non-
residential building located within the B, LB, or TN zoning districts. 

 
1. Site Planning 

a. The site shall support pedestrian circulation and provide pedestrian 
amenities.  Sidewalks shall be provided along building fronts. 
Entryway will continue to provide pedestrian access to and from BCC to the alley area. 
 

b. The main facade shall be oriented to the street. The main entrance(s) 
to the building shall be located on the street side of the building.  If the building is located on a 



 Hailey Townsite (County Courthouse Rear Entryway Alteration), Blk 27, Lots 13-22 (206 S. 1st Ave.) 
Planning & Zoning Commission – October 9, 2012 

Design Review Exemption - Findings of Fact – Page 5 of 7 
 
 

corner, entrances shall be provided on both street frontages.  If the design includes a courtyard, 
the main entrance may be located through the courtyard.  Buildings with more than one retail 
space on the ground floor are encouraged to have separate entrances for each unit.   
Façade of entryway and building space is oriented to the alley.  
 

c. Buildings located within the Business District shall be located directly 
at the back of the sidewalk.  In other zoning districts buildings may be separated from the 
sidewalk by landscaping or plazas with benches, bicycle racks, trash containers, and other 
pedestrian amenities. 
Entryway is located immediately off the alley.   
 

d. Building designs shall maximize the human scale of buildings and 
enhance the small town “sense of place”.  This can be achieved by utilizing voids and masses, as 
well as details, textures, and colors on building facades.  Human scale can also be achieved by 
incorporating structural elements such as colonnades and covered walkways, overhangs, canopies, 
entries, and landscaping.  Particular attention should be paid to creating interest at the street 
level. 
Entryway emphasizes small human scale providing pedestrian access to and from BCC.  
 

e. Fire department staging areas shall be incorporated into the design 
elements of the building. 
Applicant is hereby notified of requirement. 
 
6A.6 Criteria. 

A. The Commission or Hearing Examiner shall determine the following before 
approval is given: 

1. The project does not jeopardize the health, safety or welfare of the public. 
2. The project conforms to the applicable specifications outlined in the Design 

Review Guidelines, as set forth herein, applicable requirements of the Zoning Ordinance, and City 
Standards. 

B. Conditions.  The Commission or Hearing Examiner may impose any condition 
deemed necessary.  The Commission or Hearing Examiner may also condition approval of a 
project with subsequent review and/or approval by the Administrator or Planning Staff.  
Conditions which may be attached include, but are not limited to those which will: 

1. Ensure compliance with applicable standards and guidelines. 
2. Require conformity to approved plans and specifications. 
3. Require security for compliance with the terms of the approval. 
4. Minimize adverse impact on other development. 
5. Control the sequence, timing and duration of development. 
6. Assure that development and landscaping are maintained properly. 
7. Require more restrictive standards than those generally found in the Zoning 

Ordinance. 
C. Security.  The applicant may, in lieu of actual construction of any required or 

approved improvement, provide to the City such security as may be acceptable to the City, in a 
form and in an amount equal to the cost of the engineering or design, materials and installation of 
the improvements not previously installed by the applicant, plus fifty percent (50%), which 
security shall fully secure and guarantee completion of the required improvements within a period 
of one (1) year from the date the security is provided.   



 Hailey Townsite (County Courthouse Rear Entryway Alteration), Blk 27, Lots 13-22 (206 S. 1st Ave.) 
Planning & Zoning Commission – October 9, 2012 

Design Review Exemption - Findings of Fact – Page 6 of 7 
 
 

1. If any extension of the one year period is granted by the City, each additional 
year, or portion of each additional year, shall require an additional twenty percent (20%) to be 
added to the amount of the original security initially provided. 

2. In the event the improvements are not completely installed within one (1) 
year, or upon the expiration of any approved extension, the City may, but is not obligated, to 
apply the security to the completion of the improvements and complete construction of the 
improvements. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION 

 
Based upon the above Findings of Fact, the Commission makes the following Conclusions of Law and 
Decision: 
1. The alteration to the rear entryway area and structure of BBC conforms to the applicable 

specifications outlined in the Design Review Guidelines, as set forth herein, applicable 
requirements of the Zoning Ordinance and City Standards.  

2. The proposed entryway exterior material replacements with either existing or equal materials 
have no substantial impact on adjacent properties or on the community at large. 

3. The entryway exterior material replacements shall receive Design Review approval subject to the 
following conditions: 
a) All Fire Department and Building Department requirements shall be met 

 
b) Any change in use or occupancy type from that approved at time of issuance of Building 

Permit may require additional improvements and/or approvals. Additional parking may also 
be required upon subsequent change in use, in conformance with Hailey’s Zoning Ordinance 
at the time of the new use. 

 
c) All City applicable infrastructure requirements shall be met.  Detailed plans for all 

infrastructure to be installed or improved at or adjacent to the site shall be submitted for 
Department Head approval and shall meet City Standards where required.   

 
d) No auxiliary apparatus (e.g. utility meters, fire suppression equipment) may extend into any 

public right-of-way. 
 
e) The project shall be constructed in accordance with the application or as modified by these 

Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Decision. 
 
f) All exterior lighting shall comply with the Outdoor Lighting Ordinance.  (Any existing 

lighting on the subject property shall also be brought into compliance. * if applicable) 
 
g) Except as otherwise provided, all the required improvements shall be constructed and 

completed, or sufficient security provided as approved by the City Attorney, before a 
Certificate of Occupancy can be issued. 



 Hailey Townsite (County Courthouse Rear Entryway Alteration), Blk 27, Lots 13-22 (206 S. 1st Ave.) 
Planning & Zoning Commission – October 9, 2012 

Design Review Exemption - Findings of Fact – Page 7 of 7 
 
 

 
h) This Design Review approval is for plans dated October 1 & October 4, 2012.  The Planning 

& Zoning Administrator has the authority to approve minor modifications to this project 
prior to, and  

 
i) for the duration of a valid Building Permit. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed this _____ day of ____________, 2012. 
 
 
__________________________ 
Geoffrey Moore, Chair 
Hailey Planning and Zoning Commission 
 
Attest: 
 
_______________________________ 
Bart Bingham, Planning Administrator 
 



















ThomasP
Text Box
TOTAL SQUARE FOOTAGE: 437 SF

ThomasP
Text Box
A2.02

































ThomasP
Text Box
METAL ROOF COLOR SAMPLE



ThomasP
Text Box
ORIGINAL METAL ROOF COLOR SAMPLE





 STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:  Hailey Planning & Zoning Commission 
 
FROM: Micah Austin, Community Development Director 
 
RE:  Conditional Use Permit – Wood River Gymnastics, Andrea Minnick 
 
HEARING: October 9, 2012 
 
Applicant: Wood River Gymnastics, Andrea Minnick 
 
Location: 810 S. Main, Unit C, Airport West (Blk 1, Lots 10 & AM 11A) 
 
Zoning: Technological Industry 
 
Note:  Staff analysis is in lighter type 
  
Notice 
Notice for the public hearing on October 9 was sent to the Mt. Express on September 15 and 
published in the Mountain Express on September 19.   
 
Application 
Wood River Gymnastics, represented by Andrea Minnick, submitted a Conditional Use Permit 
application for a the operation of a gymnastics facility located at 810 S. Main, Unit C, Airport 
West (Blk 1, Lots 10 & AM 11A).  The property is located in the Technological Industry zoning 
district and is proposed to be used gymnastics facility.  
 
 
Department Comments 
 
Life/Safety: 
No issues 
  
Building: 
No issues 
  
Water/Sewer:  
No issues 
 
 
 
Standards of Evaluation 
 



Wood River Gymnastics, represented by Andrea Minnick 
810 S. Main, Unit C, Airport West (Blk 1, Lots 10 & AM 11A)- Conditional Use Permit Application 

Planning and Zoning Commission – October 9, 2012 
Page 2 of 6 

 
8.2 Signs. 
The applicant is hereby advised that a sign permit is required for any signage exceeding four 
square feet in sign area.  Approval of signage areas or signage plan in Design Review does not 
constitute approval of a sign permit. 
 
8B.4. Outdoor Lighting Standards. 
8B.4.1 General Standards 

a. All exterior lighting shall be designed, located and lamped in order to prevent: 
1. Overlighting; 
2. Energy waste; 
3. Glare;  
4. Light Trespass;  
5. Skyglow.  

b. All non-essential exterior commercial and residential lighting is encouraged to 
be turned off after business hours and/or when not in use.  Lights on a timer are 
encouraged.  Sensor activated lights are encouraged to replace existing lighting 
that is desired for security purposes. 

c. Canopy lights, such as service station lighting shall be fully recessed or fully 
shielded so as to ensure that no light source is visible from or causes glare on 
public rights of way or adjacent properties.  

d. Area lights. All area lights are encouraged to be eighty-five (85) degree full cut-
off type luminaires. 

e. Idaho Power shall not install any luminaires after the effective date of this 
Article that lights the public right of way without first receiving approval for 
any such application by the Lighting Administrator. 

• All new and existing lighting shall comply with Hailey’s Outdoor Lighting Ordinance. 
 
9.4 Parking Space Requirements. 
9.2.8 Access.   

A. Except as otherwise provided herein, any parking area on private property, 
shall be designed in such a manner that any vehicle leaving or entering the parking area 
from or onto a public street shall be traveling in a forward motion. 

• Parking spaces as detailed in the site plans meet City Standards and provide adequate 
spaces for the amount of usage the building will receive.   

    
B. Where alleys exist, access to on-site parking for any non-residential use or 

for any multifamily dwelling of three or more units shall be from the alley.  Parking areas 
adjacent to alleys may be designed to allow a vehicle to back from the parking area into the 
alley. 

• Not applicable. 
 
 
 
  

C. If the site is not serviced by an alley, access shall be from a single approach to 



Wood River Gymnastics, represented by Andrea Minnick 
810 S. Main, Unit C, Airport West (Blk 1, Lots 10 & AM 11A)- Conditional Use Permit Application 

Planning and Zoning Commission – October 9, 2012 
Page 3 of 6 

 
the street to confine vehicular/pedestrian conflict to limited locations, allow more buffering 
of the parking area and preserve the street frontage for pedestrian traffic. 

• Access to Business Park Dr. will be a single approach 
 

D. Access for on-site parking areas or loading spaces shall be located in such a 
way that any vehicle entering or leaving such area shall be clearly visible by a pedestrian or 
motorist approaching the access or driveway from a public or private street.   

• Vehicles entering or leaving the parking area are proposed to be clearly visible by a 
pedestrian or motorist approaching the access or driveway from a public or private street. 

  
E. Access for subdivisions shall be provided in accordance with standards set 

forth in Section 4 of the Subdivision Ordinance. 
• Not applicable. 

 
F. Parking areas containing no more than two (2) parking spaces in any zoning 

district or parking areas within the LR, GR, TN, TI and LI Districts may be designed to 
allow a vehicle to back from the parking area into the public right-of-way. 

• Not applicable.  
 

G. Parking areas for residential uses only may be designed to allow required 
parking spaces for one vehicle to deny access to another vehicle, thus “stacking” the 
parking area.  For non-residential uses, stacked parking may be allowed only for additional 
spaces that may be provided in excess of the required number of parking spaces. 

• Not applicable.  
 
11. Conditional Use Permits 
11.4 Criteria for Review. 

11.4.1 The Commission or Hearing Examiner shall review the particular facts and 
circumstances of each proposed conditional use in terms of the following standards and, if 
approved, shall find adequate evidence showing that such use at the proposed location: 

 
a. Will, in fact, constitute a conditional use as established for the zoning   

district involved; and 
• Physical fitness facilities require a Conditional Use Permit in the Technological Industry 

zone.  
 

b. Will be designed, constructed, operated, and maintained to be 
harmonious and appropriate in appearance with the existing or intended character of the 
general vicinity, and that such use will not change the essential character of the same area;  

• The proposed use will be a gymnastics facility, which is similar to other uses in this zone 
and will not change the character of the area.  

   
c. Will not be hazardous or disturbing to existing or future neighboring 

uses; 



Wood River Gymnastics, represented by Andrea Minnick 
810 S. Main, Unit C, Airport West (Blk 1, Lots 10 & AM 11A)- Conditional Use Permit Application 

Planning and Zoning Commission – October 9, 2012 
Page 4 of 6 

 
• No hazards or disturbances are anticipated for this particular use.  Other than the requisite 

traffic to and from the facility, the use should have impose no externalities.  
  

d. Will be served adequately by essential public facilities and services 
such as highways, streets, police and fire protection, and drainage structure.  Agencies 
responsible for the establishment of the proposed use shall be able to provide adequately 
any such service; and 

• The facility is accessed via Business Park Dr.  
 

      e.          Will not create excessive additional requirements at public cost for 
public facilities and services; and 

• At this time, no additional cost will be incurred from any public agencies for this facility 
to function and operate.   

  
  f.          Will not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, equipment, or 
conditions of operation that will be detrimental to any persons, property, or the general 
welfare by reason of excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare, dust, odors, 
vibration, water or air pollution, or safety hazards; and 

• No externalities are anticipated by this use. 
 

g.        Will have vehicular approaches to the property which shall be 
designed so as not to create an interference with traffic on surrounding public 
thoroughfares;  

• Property is accessed via Business Park Drive, which us a dead-end road, servicing only 
this particular business park. No surround public thoroughfares will be adversely impact 
by this use.  

 
h. Will not result in the destruction, loss, or damage of a natural, scenic, 

or historic feature. 
• Proposed property does not contain a natural, scenic, or historic feature or structure. 

 
11.6 Conditions. 
 The Commission or Hearing Examiner may impose any conditions which it deems 

necessary to secure the purpose of City regulations and give effect to the 
Comprehensive Plan.  Conditions which may be attached include, but are not 
limited to those which will: 
11.6.1 Require conformity to approved plans and specifications. 
11.6.2 Require or restrict open spaces, buffer strips, walls, fences, signs, 

concealing hedges, landscaping and lighting. 
11.6.3 Restrict volume of traffic generated, require off-street parking, and 

restrict vehicular movements within the site and points of vehicular ingress 
and egress or other conditions related to traffic. 

11.6.4 Require performance characteristics related to the emission of noise, 
vibration and other potentially dangerous or objectionable elements. 

11.6.5 Limit time of day for the conduct of specified activities. 



Wood River Gymnastics, represented by Andrea Minnick 
810 S. Main, Unit C, Airport West (Blk 1, Lots 10 & AM 11A)- Conditional Use Permit Application 

Planning and Zoning Commission – October 9, 2012 
Page 5 of 6 

 
11.6.6 Require guarantees such as performance bonds or other security for 

compliance with the terms of the approval. 
11.6.7 Require dedications and public improvements on property frontages. 
11.6.8 Require irrigation ditches, laterals, and canals to be covered or fenced. 
11.6.9 Minimize adverse impact on other development. 
11.6.10 Control the sequence, timing and duration of development. 
11.6.11 Assure that development is maintained properly. 
11.6.12 Designate the exact location and nature of development. 
11.6.13 Require the provision for on-site or off-site public services. 
11.6.14 Require more restrictive standards than those generally found in this 

Ordinance. 
11.6.15 Mitigate foreseeable social, economic, fiscal and environmental effects. 
11.6.16 Set a limit on the duration of the permit when deemed necessary. 
11.6.17 Allow for subsequent periodic review. 

 
The Commission may impose any conditions that are deemed necessary to secure the 
purpose of City ordinances and give effect to the Comprehensive Plan.  Conditions 
including but not limited to those set forth in Section 11.6 may be placed on any approval. 

  
 

Summary 
Section 11.1 of the Hailey Zoning Ordinance states that “the City of Hailey recognizes that 
certain uses possess unique and special characteristics with respect to their location, design, size, 
method of operation, circulation, and public facilities. In order to protect the public welfare and 
promote conformance with the Comprehensive Plan, conditional use permits are required for 
such uses upon review by the Commission.” 
 
Conditional Use Permits are subject to review and revocation pursuant to Section 11.9 of the 
Hailey Zoning Ordinance.  This statement will be included in the Findings of Fact, Conclusions 
of Law, and Decision for any CUP approved by the Commission. 
 
By ordinance, the Commission is required to make a decision to approve, conditionally approve, 
or deny the application within forty-five (45) days after conclusion of the public hearing and 
issue its decision together with the reasons therefore.  The Commission is required to review the 
application, all supporting documents and plans, and Section 11 of the Zoning Ordinance, in 
making their decision.  
 
The Commission should make findings related to the criteria of Section 11.4, (a) through (h). 
 
 
Suggested Conditions 
The following conditions are suggested to be placed on any approval of this application: 
 

a) All Fire Department and Building Department requirements shall be met. 
 



Wood River Gymnastics, represented by Andrea Minnick 
810 S. Main, Unit C, Airport West (Blk 1, Lots 10 & AM 11A)- Conditional Use Permit Application 

Planning and Zoning Commission – October 9, 2012 
Page 6 of 6 

 
 
 
Motion Language 
 
Approval: 
Motion to approve conditional use permit application for Wood River Gymnastics, represented 
by Andrea Minnick, to operate a gymnastics facility at 810 S. Main, Unit C, Airport West (Blk 1, 
Lots 10 & AM 11A) and finding that the application meets each of the criteria for review (a) 
through (h) cited in Zoning Ordinance Article 11.4, Section 11.4.1, and that the conditional use 
permit is subject to condition (a) noted above and the following conditions ___________. 
 
Denial: 
Motion to deny conditional use permit application for Wood River Gymnastics, represented by 
Andrea Minnick, to operate a gymnastics facility  at 810 S. Main, Unit C, Airport West (Blk 1, 
Lots 10 & AM 11A), citing the following reasons for denial _______________. 
 
Continuation: 
Motion to continue discussion of the conditional use permit application for Wood River 
Gymnastics, represented by Andrea Minnick, to operate a gymnastics facility  at 810 S. Main, 
Unit C, Airport West (Blk 1, Lots 10 & AM 11A), to a later day as specified here 
_____________.   
 
Table: 
Motion to table decision of the conditional use permit application for Wood River Gymnastics, 
represented by Andrea Minnick, to operate a gymnastics facility  at 810 S. Main, Unit C, Airport 
West (Blk 1, Lots 10 & AM 11A), to a later day as specified here _____________. 



































































































 STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:  Hailey Planning and Zoning Commission 
 
FROM: Micah Austin, Community Development Director 
 
RE:  Zoning Ordinance Amendment – Section 8.2 addressing temporary signs and 

standards.   
 
HEARING: October 2, 2012 
 
 
 
Notice 
Notice for the public hearing was published in the Idaho Mountain Express on September 19, 
2012 mailed to public agencies and area media on September 20. 
 
Proposal 
This city initiated text amendment addressing the definition of temporary signs and standards for 
displaying temporary signs.   Specifically, the temporary sign definition was updated to define a 
temporary sign as, “A sign not permanently embedded in the ground or a sign not permanently 
affixed to a building or sign structure and which cannot be relocated without removing poles 
from the ground or dismantling the sign from a building or sign structure.  A Temporary Sign is 
intended to display either commercial or noncommercial messages of a transitory or temporary 
nature.  A Temporary Sign is not considered a Portable Sign.”  Based on staff’s outreach to the 
public during the drafting period of this ordinance revision, the proposed new standards should 
be acceptable to the public. It is also anticipated that new standards will more enforceable and 
easier for the business community to interpret.   
 
Procedural History 
The text amendment will be considered by the:  

• Planning and Zoning Commission: October 9, 2012 
• City Council: October 15, 2012 

 
Department Comments 
The proposed ordinance revision is the result of staff work and several hours of outreach with 
businesses in our community that will be directly affected by this ordinance.  Through working 
with the business owners, staff was able to draft ordinance that achieved the City’s objectives 
while meeting the needs of the business community.  
 
Standards of Evaluation 
 
Note:  Staff analysis is in lighter type,                                                                                  
                        Italicized words are words or phrases added by staff for clarification purposes.  
 
14.6 When evaluating any proposed amendment under this Article, the Commission and 
Council shall make findings of fact on the following criteria: 
 
a. The proposed amendment is in accordance with the Comprehensive Plan; 



Temporary Signs, Section 8.2 - Zoning Ordinance Amendment 
Planning and Zoning Commission – October 3, 2012 

Hailey City Council—October 15, 2012 
Page 2 of 6 

 
 

The Commission should consider how the proposed amendments relates to the various goals of 
the Comprehensive Plan (listed below for reference).   
 
The proposed amendment is in compliance with the following goals and objectives listed in the 
Comprehensive Plan: 
 
 

1. Section 11.1 Establish a built environment that maintains a human scale, retains 
interest, aesthetics, encourages various levels of interaction among all members of 
the community, and enhances the character of different neighborhoods. 

a. The proposed ordinance addresses the recent proliferation of temporary signs in 
Hailey, particularly along the Main Street corridor, in hopes of reducing sign 
clutter, improving aestethetics, and preventing “temporary signs” from becoming 
permanent through continual use. 

b.  It is the opinion of staff that the overabundance and lack of enforcement on 
temporary signs can be detrimental to the character of the community. 

 
  
 

2. Section 6.1 Encourage a diversity of economic development opportunities within 
Hailey  

a. This proposal does not intend to limit the growth, opportunity, or profitability of 
any business in Hailey and Staff has taken great care in making sure this 
amendment does not limit a business’s opportunity to succeed in Hailey 

b. Through outreach to local businesses and through the required public process, 
Staff has provided the business community opportunity to voice their opinion on 
this amendment.  

 
 
Comp Plan Goals (2010) 
1.1 Preserve, protect and restore natural resources including waterways, floodplains, 
wetlands, soil, community forest, native vegetation, green space and wildlife habitat and 
migration corridors for the benefit of the City and its residents. 
1.2 Efficiently use and conserve resources. 
1.3 Promote renewable energy production 
1.4 Promote energy conservation 
1.5 Promote air quality protection 
2.1 Reduce the potential threat to loss of life, limb or property and minimize public 
expenditures due to natural and man-made hazards. 
3.1 Assure the protection and preservation of Special Sites, Areas and Features to maintain a 
strong community identity for future generations 
3.2 Protect the residential character of the original Townsite. 
4.1 Create and maintain an interconnected system of parks, recreational facilities, trails, green 
spaces and natural lands in order to provide diverse recreation opportunities for Hailey residents 
within ¼ mile to ½ mile of the greatest number of residents. 



Temporary Signs, Section 8.2 - Zoning Ordinance Amendment 
Planning and Zoning Commission – October 3, 2012 

Hailey City Council—October 15, 2012 
Page 3 of 6 

 
 

5.1 Retain a compact City comprised a central downtown with surrounding diverse 
neighborhoods, areas and characteristics as depicted in the Land Use Map: 
a. Main Street Corridor – area of high density commercial, mixed use and residential 
development. 
b. Downtown - the historic commercial center containing the greatest concentration of 
commercial, cultural and civic activity.  Downtown is the priority area for encouraging higher 
density commercial and mixed use (commercial and residential) development. 
c. Community Activity Areas – located at the north and south ends of the Main Street 
Corridor.  High density residential is encouraged.  Commercial and mixed use (commercial and 
residential) development is appropriate, but should be subordinate and secondary to the infill of 
Downtown. 
d. High Density Residential – high density residential infill is encouraged in the area along 
Main Street and River Street between Downtown and the north and south ends of Main Street. 
e. Residential Buffer – medium density residential, providing a buffer between lower 
density residential neighborhoods to the east and west and the Main Street District.   
f. Traditional Residential – Density varies depending on the qualities of different 
neighborhoods, generally density is higher within a ¼ mile of Downtown, Community Activity 
Areas or Neighborhood Service Centers and connected by transit service.   
g. Neighborhood Service Centers – Small commercial areas serving residents within 
walking distance (¼ to ½ mile) where commercial use is subordinate to residential uses and to 
Downtown or Community Activity Areas. 
h. Light Industrial – Areas containing uses important to a variety of business sectors that 
focus on the production of products and services that are less compatible with, and do not 
compete with, uses in Downtown and the Community Activity Areas. 
i. Airport Site Redevelopment – a diversity and integration of uses and community assets 
that complement and support Downtown and are connected within and to existing 
neighborhoods. 
j. Community Gateways – areas where one has a sense of arrival or sense of being within a 
part of town distinguished from others providing opportunities for special design considerations. 



Temporary Signs, Section 8.2 - Zoning Ordinance Amendment 
Planning and Zoning Commission – October 3, 2012 

Hailey City Council—October 15, 2012 
Page 4 of 6 

 
 

 
5.2 Maintain Downtown as the area containing the greatest concentration of commercial, 
cultural and civic activity and as the priority area for encouraging higher density commercial and 
mixed use (commercial and residential) development. 
5.3 Continue cooperation with the Blaine County and the Friedman Memorial Airport 
Authority in regional planning efforts to optimally relocate the airport and plan for the long term 
redevelopment of the site within the city limits to ensure that changes in land use are beneficial 
to the community of Hailey. 
5.4 Protect open space within and surrounding Hailey, including visible ridgelines, 
undeveloped hillsides and agricultural areas which help define the unique character of Hailey. 
5.5 Lessen dependency on the automobile. 
5.6 Manage and accommodate population growth by infill development and, when 
appropriate, minimal expansion by annexation and/or density increases. 
5.7 Encourage development at the densities allowed in the Zoning Code. 
6.1 Encourage a diversity of economic development opportunities within Hailey 
6.2 Encourage abundant, competitive and career-oriented opportunities for young workers. 
7.1 Encourage a variety of projects and programs that meet the needs generated by various 
segments of the population, especially the needs of those who risk suffering effects of 
discrimination or are socially or economically disadvantaged.  
7.2 Encourage projects and programs that seek to provide opportunities for cultural, cross-
cultural and educational enrichment. 
8.1 Encourage development that provides opportunities for home ownership and rental 
homes for individuals and families of all socio-economic levels. 
9.1 Plan for the long-term utilities, service and facility needs of the City while minimizing 
impacts to the greatest extent possible. 
10.1. Create and maintain a pedestrian and bicycle-friendly community that provides a safe, 
convenient and efficient multi-modal transportation system for all Hailey residents. 
11.1 Establish a built environment that maintains a human scale, retains interest, aesthetics, 
encourages various levels of interaction among all members of the community, and enhances the 
character of different neighborhoods. 
12.1 Evaluate whether proposed regulatory or administrative actions may result in an 
unconstitutional taking of private property. 
13.1 Encourage and facilitate the development of school facilities that are planned consistently 
with the city’s other land use policies. 
13.2 Ensure the provision of safe, adequate, convenient multi-modal transportation access to 
all existing and future school sites. 



Temporary Signs, Section 8.2 - Zoning Ordinance Amendment 
Planning and Zoning Commission – October 3, 2012 

Hailey City Council—October 15, 2012 
Page 5 of 6 

 
 

b. Essential public facilities and services are available to support the full range of 
proposed uses without creating excessive additional requirements at public cost for 
the public facilities and services; 

• There are no additional costs or compromise anticipated to public facilities and services.  
 
c. The proposed uses are compatible with the surrounding area; and 

• There are no issues with compatibility regarding this amendment.  
 
d. The proposed amendment will promote the public health, safety and general 

welfare. 
• It is not anticipated that the proposed amendment will adversely affect the public health, 

safety and welfare of citizens.   
 
Summary  
The Commission is required to hold a public hearing and determine whether the proposed 
amendment is in accordance with the applicable standards of evaluation and make a 
recommendation to the Council that the proposed amendment be granted or denied, or that a 
modified amendment be granted.   
***or*** 
If the proposed change is approved, the Council is required to pass an ordinance making said 
amendment part of Hailey Zoning Ordinance _____.  The draft ordinance is attached.  
 



Temporary Signs, Section 8.2 - Zoning Ordinance Amendment 
Planning and Zoning Commission – October 3, 2012 

Hailey City Council—October 15, 2012 
Page 6 of 6 

 
 

Motion Language 
 
Approval: 
P&Z 
Motion to recommend the City Council approve the proposed amendments to Section 8.2 of the 
Zoning Ordinance finding that the amendments are in accordance with the Comprehensive Plan, 
that essential public facilities and services are available to support the full range of proposed uses 
without creating excessive additional requirements at public cost for the public facilities and 
services, that the proposed uses are compatible with the surrounding area, and that the proposed 
amendment will promote the public health, safety and general welfare. 
 
 
Council 
Motion to approve the proposed amendments to Section 8.2 of the Zoning Ordinance, finding 
that the amendments are in accordance with the Comprehensive Plan, that essential public 
facilities and services are available to support the full range of proposed uses without creating 
excessive additional requirements at public cost for the public facilities and services, that the 
proposed uses are compatible with the surrounding area, and that the proposed amendment will 
promote the public health, safety and general welfare and adopt Ordinance ____ and authorize 
the mayor to conduct the first reading by title only. 
 
Denial: 
P&Z 
Motion to recommend the City Council the proposed amendments to Section 8.2 of the Zoning 
Ordinance, finding that ____________________ [the Commission should cite which standards 
are not met and provided the reason why each identified standard is not met]. 
 
Council 
Motion to deny ____________ the proposed amendments to Section 8.2 of the Zoning Ordinance 
finding that ____________________ [the Council should cite which standards are not met and 
provided the reason why each identified standard is not met]. 
 
Continuation: 
Motion to continue the public hearing upon the proposed amendment to Section 8.2 of the 
Zoning Ordinance to __________________[the Commission should specify a date]. 
 
Table: 
Motion to table the proposed amendment to Section _____ 



-1- 
 

HAILEY ORDINANCE NO. ____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF HAILEY, IDAHO, AMENDING SECTION 8.2.2 OF 
HAILEY ZONING ORDINANCE NO. 532 TO REVISE THE DEFINITION OF TEMPORARY 
SIGN; AMENDING SECTION 8.2.5 TO DELETE THE SIZE LIMIT ON A TEMPORARY 
SIGN; ADDING A NEW SUBSECTION 8.2.11(H) TO PROVIDE TEMPORARY SIGN 
STANDARDS; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A 
REPEALER CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING FOR THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THIS 
ORDINANCE UPON PASSAGE, APPROVAL AND PUBLICATION ACCORDING TO 
LAW. 
  

WHEREAS, the Hailey City Council has found that the following amendment to the Hailey 
Zoning Ordinance will generally conform with the Hailey Comprehensive Plan;  
 

WHEREAS, the amendments will not create excessive additional requirements at public cost 
for public facilities and services; and 
 

WHEREAS, the amendment will be in accordance with the safety and welfare of the general 
public. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF HAILEY, IDAHO, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.  Section 8.2.2, Definitions, of the Hailey Zoning Ordinance No. 532, is hereby 
amended by the deletion of the stricken language and the addition of the underlined language to 
the definition of “Temporary Sign”, as follows: 
 
Temporary Sign.  A sign installed on a property for 72 hours or less and displayed no more than 
four times a year.  A sign not permanently embedded in the ground or a sign not permanently 
affixed to a building or sign structure and which cannot be relocated without removing poles 
from the ground or dismantling the sign from a building or sign structure.  A Temporary Sign is 
intended to display either commercial or noncommercial messages of a transitory or temporary 
nature.  A Temporary Sign is not considered a Portable Sign. 
 
Section 2.  Section 8.2.5 of the Hailey Zoning Ordinance No. 532, is hereby amended by the 
deletion of the stricken language and by the addition of the underlined language, as follows: 
 
A. The following Signs shall not be subject to the permit process as defined by Section 8.2.4 
and are not included in the total aggregate sign area as defined in Section 8.2.9.: 
 1, Flags, symbols, or insignias either historic or official of any state or nation, 
providing the Flag is no larger than sixty square feet and is flown from a pole the top of which is 
no higher than forty (40) feet (40’) from natural grade. 
 2. Signs posted by a governmental entity. 
 3. Two Temporary Signs per building or if a multi-unit building, one per Unit, less 
than 16 square feet each. 
 4. Signs with areas of four square feet or less. 



-2- 
 

 5. Merchandise displayed in windows that does not display Copy. 
 6. Pennants and wind socks, which in no way identify or advertise a person, product, 
service or business. 
 7. Any Sign inside a building not visible from the exterior of the building. 
 8. Art located on private property which in no way identify or advertise a person, 
product, service or business. 
 9. Historic signs designated by the Hailey City Council as having historic 
significance to the City or replicas of historic signs as approved by the Hailey City  Council. 
 10. Building identification signs which identify the name of the building only.  These 
Signs are separate from Signs which identify, advertise or promote any person, entity, product or 
service. 
 11. Signs on licensed, and registered, vehicles that are used for normal day-to-day 
operations of a businesses, regardless of whether the business is located within Hailey. 
 
Section 3.  Section 8.2.11 of Hailey Zoning Ordinance No. 532, is hereby amended by the 
addition of a new subsection 8.2.11(H), as follows: 
 
H. Temporary Signs.   
  1. A Temporary Sign shall be displayed for no more than ninety-six (96) 
hours and for no more than four (4) times per year with a minimum of a five (5) day interval 
between displays of the Temporary Sign. 
  2. No more than two (2) Temporary Signs are allowed for any building or for 
any Unit in a multi-unit building at any given time. 
  3. The total square footage of one or more Temporary Signs shall not exceed 
thirty-six feet (36’). 
  4. The square footage of Temporary Signs is exempted from the total allotted 
sign square footage allowed for any building or for any Unit in a multi-unit building. 
  5. Temporary Signs shall not extend exceed the height of the roof lines of 
adjacent buildings or structures.   
  6. Temporary Signs shall not extend into a Street or Alley, unless specifically 
authorized in a sign permit. 
 
Section 4.  Should any section or provision of this Ordinance be declared by the courts to be 
unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of the Ordinance as a whole 
or any part thereof other than the part so declared to be unconstitutional or invalid. 

 
Section 5.  All City of Hailey ordinances or resolutions or parts thereof, which are in conflict 
herewith, are hereby repealed. 
 
Section 6.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, approval, 
and publication according to law.  
 
 
 
 
 



-3- 
 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE HAILEY CITY COUNCIL AND APPROVED BY 
THE MAYOR THIS ____ DAY OF __________________, 2012. 
 
 
 
       _______________________________ 
       Fritz X. Haemmerle, Mayor, City of Hailey 
 
Attest: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Mary Cone, City Clerk          
 


	AGENDAHAILEY PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION
	MINUTES OF THEHAILEY PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION
	Wood River High School Campus PUD Subdivision
	TheWildflower, for alteration of the exterior
	Blaine County Courthouse, hereinafter BCC
	Wood River Gymnastics, Andrea Minnick
	Zoning Ordinance Amendment- Temporary Signs

	Text1: 
	Text2: 
	Text3: 
	Text4: 
	Text5: 
	Text6: 
	Text7: 


